1990/91-86

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE FACULTY SENATE OF THE UNIVERSITY OF ARIZONA
Monday, March 4, 1991 Room 146, College of Law

The Faculty Senate convened in regular session at 3:15 p.m. on Monday,
March 4, 1991, in Room 146 of the College of Law. Fifty-four members were
present. Presiding Officer of the Faculty Senate Vivian L. Cox presided.

SENATE MEMBERS PRESENT: Adamec, Aquilano, Atwater, Avery, Badger, Beigel,
Bickel, Bizik, Braden, Burkhart, Cork, Cox, Cusanovich,
Dvorak, Elliott, Enos, Escalante, Ewbank, Garcia,
Goetinck, Joens, Johnson, Kermes, Knight, Kolodny,
Krager, D. Larson, LaSalle, Lei, Masone, Mautner,
Mitchell, 0O‘Brien, Parsons, Redeker, Roemer, Rollins,
Sander, Shisslak, Silverman, Smerdon, Songer, Spera,
Steinke, Sugnet, Sullivan, Tomizuka, Tomoff, Valenzuela,
Vezino, Witte, Woodard, Zukoski and Zwolinski. Dr.
Robert M. Sankey served as Parliamentarian.

SENATE MEMBERS ABSENT: Aleamoni, Bootman, Butler, Chen, Cole, Dalen,
Fenstermacher, Fernandez, Ganapol, Ganguly, Hershberger,
Hetrick, Hildebrand, Jones, Koffler, L. Larson,
McCullough, Pao Tao, Phipps, Ratner, Salomon, Schneider,
Sigelman,Smith,Thomson,Valdez,VanMetre,andZeigler.

OPEN SESSION: 1In conjunction with the scheduling of this first Open Session,
Dr. Cox reported, a notice had been sent to Lo Que Pasa to inform members of the
General Faculty, but unfortunately it had not been published. However, she said,
she would proceed, and invited anyone present to address the Senate on issues
they believe to be important.

Dr. Eugene Levy, Head, Planetary Sciences, commented on the Coalition for
University Excellence (CUE). He said the Coalition’s main focus is faculty
governance, of which the Senate is a principal part. He reported that those who
initiated CUE were pleased that so much attention has been focused on its goals
and activities. "We regard this as a sign that our initial perceptions are
correct, that there is widespread dissatisfaction among our faculty with the
state of faculty governance on this campus, and that dissatisfaction gave rise
to the establishment of the Coalition." He added that most CUE members, inclu-
ding members of the steering committee, have not been previously involved in
faculty governance. "We were driven to this activity by our fair assessment that
faculty governance is not as functional as they would have it. There is much
evidence that it is dysfunctional and this could be found by rigorous analysis.
It is clear from meeting with our faculty colleagues that most members of the
University presently feel disconnected from the organs of faculty governance on
this campus. Outside of the actual members of the Senate it is hard to find
individuals who really take what should be very important activities of faculty
governance seriously. Even in my own department when I passed along the Commit-
tee of Eleven’s request and suggestion for a meeting with faculty that idea was
greeted more or less unanimously by a combination of disinterest and hostility."
He added that the embarrassingly low turnout in faculty elections is a sign of
disinterest, despite the fact that ballots are distributed virtually into the
hands of faculty members. "Obviously the low participation is not a result of
neglect but is an active negative statement on the part of our faculty and is
signalling the alienation of our faculty." Dr. Levy said CUE is only about a
month old, and its statement of principle will be unfolding over the next several
months. The initial approach to establish the Coalition was made to about 150



1990/91-87

faculty to catalyze a larger activity on campus. "Because there have been many
confused statements made in recent weeks, I would like to set the record
straight. CUE has not targeted any candidates for defeat. 1Indeed, our agenda
is purely positive. Our agenda advocates goals, objectives and principles of
faculty governance and promotes the election of individuals who will work towards
those goals, objectives and principles. Finally, I‘d like to make one last
personal comment on what I perceive to be the inadequacy of faculty governance
at the University of Arizona. One of the principles on which CUE was established
was that the idea of faculty governance needs to be a partnership between faculty
and the administration with the aim of fostering the best education, the best
scholarship, the best service possible at this University. I can only relate
to you my astonishment that this manifestly non-controversial idea should have
been attacked publicly by opponents of CUE, with the attack continued in a
Wildcat editorial. We are told that, rather than constructive cooperation,
faculty governance must be based on the watchdog principle. Nothing that has
happened in recent weeks has so reinforced my own perceptions about the current
failure of faculty governance on this campus. Indeed, it is time that suspicion
and hostility end and governance be a partnership based on good will, good faith
and open to collegial discourse across the University, with the best interests
of the University uppermost in their remarks. This has not happened under the
existing faculty governance and that is the reason for CUE’s existence."

Senator Tomizuka said he agreed that faculty does not govern, and he could under-
stand why faculty members feel disconnected and disinterested in the affairs of
the Faculty Senate. The solution lies, however, not in changing the composition
of the Faculty Senate, but in the governance itself: to eliminate the problen,
faculty members should elect department chairs and deans.

Senator Witte said she and Senator Zukoski had circulated a memo to College of
Medicine faculty in response to a number of these issues, and she requested it
be appended to the Minutes of this meeting. She then asked whether CUE is an
official group since it is using University letterhead and whether it has the
imprimatur of the Provost’s or President’s Offices, or whether in fact it is
what it claimed to be, a grassroots group. Senator Witte said the Committee of
Eleven was attacked in the newspaper, and was referred to as having good and
bad members. "We must presume that in fact the good members are lauded and the
bad members are to be booted out; I°'1ll give you the expression ’‘hit list’ which
has been circulated among the faculty against people who have fought for faculty
governance." In regard to excellence, she said the administrators who signed
the CUE letter invited individuals to be anointed, by proxy, with excellence.
She said she believed it is dangerous to have something with the university’s
logo on it speaking about a coalition of excellent people because it might appear
they were given that imprimatur by the administration. Senator Witte said she
would like to bring up under New Business the issue of shared faculty governance.
proposed by individuals with administrative titles. She said it now appears ad-
ministrators are indicating they don’t like the fact that faculty as individuals
and faculty committees have fought to obtain a role, and that academic freedom
and political correctiveness issues seem to be involved: "You’'re not going to
be punished for your view, but you’re sure not going to be called excellent if
you speak out."

Dr. Levy, in response, said the vice presidents and the Provost have nothing to
do with CUE, that it is indeed a coalition for faculty members, and there are
now 150 members from all parts of the campus, and from all levels of the faculty.
He said he could not speak to the question of "hit list” as he did not know what
list had been referred to, and CUE had not generated or circulated such a list.



1990/91-88

"There are individuals on this campus who have their own preferences about who
should or should not be selected to faculty offices, but the coalition itself
has not made a single negative statement that I am aware of."

Senator Mitchell stated, in regard to the Committee of Eleven’s offer to visit
with departments, that the University Library took them up on their offer over
a year ago. They were very pleased to have been offered that opportunity and
believed it was a very fruitful meeting.

Senator Silverman said that as Chair of the Committee of Eleven, he has communi-
cated with a number of people involved with CUE and has applauded their involve-
ment in faculty governance, even though he believes he has been targeted, because
strong faculty governance needs people with different viewpoints. He said he
was troubled, though, by Dr. Levy’s remarks today, because he believes the Com-
mittee of Eleven should cooperate with the administration, and has, on many
occasiong. But he was troubled if what CUE sees as shared governance is, in
fact, a desire to discontinue the watchdog role of either the Committee of Eleven
or the Faculty Senate. Senator Silverman added that he believes it is important
that faculty, students and staff regularly examine the administration’s deci-
sions and decision-making processes, and when things are not going well, to bring
it forward to them. He said he hoped CUE’s role is not to eliminate that
process. Senator Silverman added that perhaps what is needed after the elections
is to pull the campus together and start communicating. A better understanding
will not eliminate disagreements, but a varied viewpoint can contribute to a
stronger governance. Senator Silverman predicted that through communication
and common ground, an understanding and appreciation of each other’s roles in
this university will result.

Senator Garcia reported, for the record, that Committee of Eleven visits to
departments were requested by about 75 percent of all departments, and had proved
to be a popular program. He said the visits provided an important communication
link between the faculty and its elected representatives. He added that he had
chaired the subcommittee that originated the visitation program, and was pleased
with its success and reception.

Dr. Lynn Nadel, Head, Psychology, said he spoke as a member, but not an initia-
tor, of CUE. He said he was pleased that the need for communication among
various entities on campus is now being recognized, and suspected that CUE’s
activities have generated considerable interest. "It is a pity that it has taken
so long to disclose and recognize." Secondly, he said, there is an important
distinction to be made between a watchdog committee and a watchdog function,
and a group of individuals engaged in faculty governance who see the appropriate
role for faculty as adversaries of the administration. He said he believed CUE
was trying to get away from the notion of labor and management at odds with each
other. He added that CUE does not stand for the principle that it simply accept
everything the administration says as gospel, but that it enters into relations
with the administration that are other than adversarial.

Senator Zukoski wondered how change could be effected until the faculty is
allowed participation in a meaningful way.

Dr. Cox announced three minutes remained in the Open Session, and while she
deeply appreciated all the comments made, she wanted to determine if there were

other issues that someone wished to bring to the floor for discussion now.

Senator O’Brien said he hoped the issue of lawmakers in Phoenix is not over-



1990/91-89

looked, because human resources are a part of the equation and should not be
forgotten. He said he would like to see a strong resolution coming from this
body to add the 2 percent inflation factor when July 1 pay raises occur.

Senator Avery reported that the hearing of the Senate’s Subcommittee on Education
last week was particularly impressive: present were the Faculty Chairs from UA,
ASU and NAU, the three student body and three alumni presidents, members of the
administration and the Arizona Board of Regents. He said it was one of the best
hearings held thus far.

Dr. Raphael Gruener, Physiology, said he would appreciate answers to the follow-
ing questions related to the forthcoming election: (1) Who is in charge of
counting votes, and what is the procedure for counting votes? (2) Does the
Senate have in mind setting up a platform for a debate among candidates from the
same position? Dr. Burkhart responded that he would speak at some length about
the election in his report. Dr. Cox noted that members of the Committee on
Elections are responsible for counting the votes. At 3:45, Dr. Cox brought the
Open Session to a close, and formally called the Senate meeting to order.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 4, 1991: The Minutes of February 4, 1991 were
approved as distributed.

REPORT FROM THE PRESIDENT OF THE UNIVERSITY: Dr. Cox reported that Dr. Koffler
is still recuperating from heart surgery.

REPORT FROM THE ACTING PRESIDENT AND PROVOST OF THE UNIVERSITY: Dr. Cox reported
Dr. Cole was away from the campus today.

REPORT FROM THE PRESIDING OFFICER OF THE FACULTY SENATE: Dr. Cox reported the
Ad Hoc Library Committee had met, and Dr. Leland Pederson was named Chair. As
information becomes available, it will be shared with the Senate. The committee
established to review language for Rules for the Maintenance of Public Order met
for the first time Friday, and Senator William Bickel was elected Chair. She
said it was a very productive meeting, and the Senate will be hearing further
when there is progress to report.

At the April meeting, Dr. Dale Hoskins, 1990-91 President of the Arizona Facul-
ties Council, will join the Senate, and will share some of the issues that have
appeared on the Council’s agenda this year.

REPORT FROM THE ACTING CHAIR OF THE FACULTY: Senator Burkhart commended the
Presiding Officer for having suggested today’s Open Session. He said the
Committee on Elections is at work planning a more simplified ballot for the next
election. Concerning oversight, he said the committee takes meticulous care of
the ballots, which will be counted electronically.

Senator Burkhart reported that, after consulting with Parliamentarian Sankey,
a General Faculty forum for general discussion on a number of issues will be held
on Wednesday, March 20, 5:00-6:00 p.m. in Student Union 285. It will be publi-
cized in Lo Que Pasa. Agenda items will include: (1) how to represent faculty
on major committees, such as the Provost’s committee to review the structure of
Arts and Sciences; (2) unifying faculty governance measures in general; (3)
strategic planning in connection with future budget proposals for the Faculty
Center--he said the Provost will require this year a strategic plan associated
with the budget request; (4) the future role of the Faculty Center and its
location. He added that the forum is something of an innovation, as General



1990/91-90

Faculty forums with general rules have not been held before, and there was no
reason they couldn’t be held on a regular basis.

Senator Burkhart also reported the Tri-University Committee has concluded its
nearly year-long work on Conditions of Service, which touches on every aspect
of job security, performance reviews, and notice of grievances. The document
will now go to the Council of Presidents. He said Senators Roemer, Jones, and
Zwolinski and Tom Rehm and Holly Smith represented this campus on that committee.
Copies of the document can be obtained from himself, Elizabeth Roemer or Doug
Jones.

REPORT FROM THE PRESIDENT OF ASUA: Senator Avery reported that the ASUA elec-
tions process is underway, with a restructuring committee considering several
proposals. A survey will be included on the student ballot to see what students
want in order to make student governance more representative. ASA organized a
legislative luncheon at the State Capitol on January 25, and brought in 140 stu-
dents from NAU, ASU and UA; almost every legislator was present. Senator Avery
applauded the Undergraduate Council for the appointment of a subcommittee to look
into upper-division GPA requirements. He said these requirements represent a
major problem in some colleges; most students who can’‘t make the 2.75 cutoff
transfer to Arts and Sciences, which gets swamped. Lastly, he called attention
to the teaching proposal, which he said he was looking forward to discussing
later on the agenda.

QUESTION AND ANSWER PERIOD: Senator Garcia said his question would have been
directed at either the President or Provost. He had been given copies of lists
of preferred candidates on official stationery circulated by deans, and he won-
dered how widespread that practice was and whether it is considered an official
function of the University’s administration. Dr. Holly Smith said she did not
know how widespread the practice is, but it was certainly not a function of Uni-
versity administrators. She added that she was not knowledgeable about this
issue. Senator Garcia asked Dr. Smith if she thought it was a good idea for
deans to act in this fashion while using official stationery. Dr. Smith replied
that she believes deans have the right to make known their views, but not in
their official capacity as deans.

Senator Tomizuka asked which dean was involved. Senator Sander acknowledged that
it was he, and that a colleague had provided him with a list of people which he
forwarded to department heads with what he believed to be a well-crafted memo.
He said he could not remember his wording exactly, but he believed he said he
could not comment on the individuals, but did comment on item 13 on the ballot.
But, he said, "it was not designed in any way, shape or form to influence the
election.” He said he never really gave much thought to the kind of stationery
or to the swaying of votes. Senator Sander added that it had been brought to
his attention by Senator Silverman, a member of the Presidential Search Commit-
tee. He said he wrote a letter to all college faculty apologizing for any per-
sonal attempt to sway the election one way or the other. He said it was not
intended.

Senator Witte noted that the colleague referred to by Senator Sander was another
dean, Senator McCullough. She added that such actions are not pleasant to
observe: the letter was mailed the first day of elections, contained reference
to himself "as Dean”, and certainly could have influenced the election. She said
she believes this to be an important issue, and she planned to bring it up under
New Business to make it a matter of record.



1990/91-91

Senator Silverman asked Dr. Holly Smith about an item in the Board of Regents
Recap of the January 19 meeting: "The University of Arizona will submit a five-
year financial plan for the University’s share of all components of the Mt.
Graham Observatory with identification of expenditures by category and sources
of revenues no later than April 5, 1991."” He asked if any campus-wide budgetary
committee has reviewed this financial plan, or if it will be reviewed, for in-
stance, by the Budgetary Task Force. Dr. Smith said she believes that budget
is still in the process of being developed, and she was unsure what kind of
consultative activities will occur. Senator Cusanovich said he views it as a
departmental budget, although with broader implications. He said details have
not yet been discussed, other than the Board request for a finance plan report
for an approved project. He added that while details have yet to be worked out,
the amounts involved were approved several years ago. Senator Silverman sugges-
ted that, with the Task Force in place, it would be appropriate to have that
group review the plan for this long-term financial matter that has university-
wide implications, especially since it was one of the items that could not be
cut when budget reallocations were made earlier this academic year.

Senator O’Brien, commenting on Senator Avery'’s report concerning the impact of
higher GPAs on some units, said he would like the reviewing committee to be made
aware of the repercussions on General Education requirements. "We have what I
call the ’lost population of students’ clogging our General Education classes,
looking for a home" and added those students are impacting Arts and Sciences
heavily. Senator Avery responded that it will be reviewed across the board, and
the first step will be to conduct an accurate survey to determine how widespread
the problem is, exactly how many students are forced to change majors due to the
upper-division requirement, and then to exam-ine the possibilities. Senator
O’Brien said his greatest concern is what happens to scholarship once students
enter a program at an initial level and then try to enter another program at a
higher level. He added that it puts undue stress on a system with already
limited enrollment availability faced with a high dropout rate when students find
it will not facilitate their GPA. Senator Avery agreed the problem is more
widespread than anyone realizes.

Dr. Cox asked if there would be any objection to suspending the rules and moving
immediately to agenda items 9 and 10. There being none, she proceeded.

ANNUAL REPORT FROM FACULTY REPRESENTATIVE TO INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETIC COMMITTEE:
Dr. Kent Kloepping noted that in this, his second report to the Senate, he would
be less anecdotal and light-hearted than last year, and more somber. The report
(appended to these minutes) was based on his monthly attendance at Intercolleg-
iate Athletic Committee meetings, and discussions and interviews with members
of the Intercollegiate Athletics Department, and he provided a typical agenda:
report from the Athletic Director; review of proposed travel schedule for
athletic competitions; review and discussion of letters of request, communication
or concerns from the community; discussion of ticketing policies and allotments,
including special concerns/needs of disabled individuals, families and faculty/
staff; review of NCAA legislative proposals; and reports from ICAC subcommittees.
He said seven varsity coaches met with the committee during the past year to
share their individual philosophies on recruitment, academic performance and
development of student athletes, and that he serves on two subcommittees: Aca-
demics and Alcohol Advertising.

Dr. Kloepping said Student/Athlete Services, begun in 1983 and under the direc-
tion of Dr. Gayle Hopkins, is a well-developed, adjunct program that does not
supplant existing University resources, but is a support system directed at the



1990/91-92

special needs of the student athlete. Beginning in 1991, the NCAA will mandate
access to academic services for all Division I schools. The Center for Athlete’s
Total Success (CATS), another excellent program, began in 1989 under the leader-
ship of Kathleen LaRose. Key concepts of the program embody seventeen components
including an enrichment program, substance abuse education, and at-risk interven-
tion. CATS is consistent with the academic mission and objectives of the Univer-
gsity in early identification, intervention and retention of students.

Dr. Kloepping shared some observations: a couple of years ago the Athletic
Department contributed two carts to the Center for Disability-Related Resources.
This past fall 5,221 rides were provided to the student body, faculty and staff,
primarily individuals with temporary disabilities, not to students permanently
disabled. He said he feels this institution is fortunate to have the kind of
Athletic Department that exists on this campus, with its commitment to excellence
in all respects: quality of the staff, adherence to the academic standards of
this institution, the focus on the individual student athlete, and the desire
to "build bridges."

Dr. Kloepping said he would be glad to hear at any time from faculty with any
questions on Intercollegiate Athletics. Dr. Cox asked that questions be held
until Dr. Dempsey had completed his report.

ANNUAL REPORT FROM INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETICS: Dr. Dempsey said it was a pleasure
to meet with the Senate again, and the report being reviewed today was his ninth.
Dr. Dempsey said he agreed with Dr. Kloepping’s remark that the most recent NCAA
convention was a "reform" convention. It covered areas of particular interest
to faculty and was probably the most dramatic one convention he could recall in
the twenty-five years he has been attending. He said there had been unsuccessful
attempts in the past three or four years to make reforms, and the goals were
established basically by three different groups: (1) three NCAA subcommittees
(Cost Reduction, Time Involvement, and Restructuring of the NCAA); (2) a confer-
ence composed of lead commissioners throughout the country reviewing the recom-
mendations made by those subcommittees; (3) and a President’s Commission which
refined some of the proposals, and did an outstanding job in lobbying the various
legislation. He said the votes were lopsided, for example 312 out of 312, pro-
ducing an overwhelming mandate for many of the actions.

Major areas that set the tone for a new era: Time restrictions: there has been
a great deal of concern in the past few years regarding the amount of time a
student athlete spends in intercollegiate athletics, probably somewhere between
35 and 40 weeks would not be unusual for certain types of sports. The committee
came out with a variety of restrictions related to length of season and number
of contests that can be played in order to reduce the time involved to twenty
hours per week--a sizeable reduction. Dr. Dempsey said the President’s Commis-
sion expressed strong concern over this issue. A study that cost more than $1
million was commissioned two years ago by the NCAA and resulted in many of the
proposals that were enacted.

A second major area dealt with staff reductions, to be effective September 1992,
although attempts to change some reductions may occur. A third area of reform
involves a series of recruiting limitations related to cost reduction measures.
A fourth area called for mainstreaming of student athletes, to integrate the
student athlete more into the general student body. The PAC-10 has not allowed
athletic dorms or dining facilities for some time, but in 1995 all will be
eliminated to eradicate isolation of the student athlete from the student body.
Dr. Dempsey said the PAC-10 has been a leader for some time in this area. A



1990/91-93

fifth area is financial aid reduction which, again, was a cost-cutting approach
to reduce the amount of dollars spent in Intercollegiate Athletics, not in the
amount of aid that can be given to student athletes, but in the number that may
be given by sport. Dr. Dempsey said another example of reform is the post-season
basketball tournament; it was canceled by PAC-10 Presidents because of their
concern of increased time commitment for student athletes.

Dr. Dempsey said there has been a great deal of speculation on what was referred
to as the NCAA billion dollar contract, a result of the NCAA post-season basket-
ball tournament. An extensive contract, amounting to a billion dollars a year,
will be shared by institutions. From this year’s tournament, $117 million will
be generated for the NCAA membership, and it has been projected that the Univer-
sity of Arizona will receive about $350,000. Last year the university received
about $200,000. But, he said, even those funds are not a panacea for all the
financial problems of intercollegiate athletics.

Dr. Dempsey expressed his appreciation to Rocky LaRose, who has done research
on what other institutions are doing with student athletes. He said many propo-
sals were received from outside firms, but after examining what other institu-
tions were doing, the conclusion was reached that the best approach to developing
CATS was to use the resources available on this campus. "We presently have over
40 faculty/staff members participating on a volunteer basis to assist with that
program, and a brochure we put together provides the athlete with the information
on where to go to get help in dealing with a particular problem.” He said Dr.
Gayle Hopkins has done an outstanding job in the academic service unit, and gra-
duation rates have improved dramatically in the last decade, as well as student
athlete GPAs. He said he would be happy to respond to particular questions.
Another positive development is the Student Athlete Advisory Board, providing
an opportunity to have an interchange with students. The Smith Project has been
a very important part of ICA’s public service, and provides student athletes with
a "giving something back” attitude. Dr. Dempsey said ICA staff is proud of the
participation of student athletes in working with young people in this community.
"Over 14,000 young people heard our student athletes this last year talk about
drug education and academic readiness.”

Concerning the budget, he said he would be happy to respond to questions on the
1989-90 budget, included with today’s packet. Dr. Dempsey said this will prob-
ably be the last year for some time where a sizeable balance will appear because
the primary reason was a $670,000 television increase that was not anticipated.
The 1990-91 budget will see a $500,000 decrease in television income, $144,000
in University funds, due the budget cutback, and a $200,000 increase in Univer-
sity service fees. And plans for the 1991-92 budget call for a reduction of 8
to 10 percent. He said ICA takes pride in its fiscal responsibility, and he
introduced John Perrin, Assistant Director for Finance, and Bob Bockrath, Senior
Associate Director, who both perform an excellent job.

Dr. Dempsey said UA has not had a major violation in the nine years he has had
the pleasure of being here, and he credits that to the staff, to the quality of
people involved in the sports programs. He said he hoped everyone appreciates
that fact, especially in light of what occurs nationally in intercollegiate
athletics. He also thanked the Intercollegiate Athletic Committee members for
their hours of service and commitment, and for providing wisdom and insight.

Concerning earlier comments regarding the Committee of Eleven, he said, ICA met
with that committee the last two years and found it to be a meaningful exchange.



1990/91-94

"We think that both sides gained a greater awareness of our roles, we think it
has been a good communication link, in particular for a program like ours that
does not always have the proximity to other units on campus, and we appreciated
the opportunity to share with them what we are attempting to do."

Dr. Dempsey added that, regarding a faculty facility, ICA has a new facility on
the east side of the stadium that could accommodate a Faculty Club, and he would
welcome the opportunity to discuss it further.

Senator Mautner asked about intervention in the CATS program. Dr. Dempsey said
that when recruited athletes arrive on campus, it might be found that they have
academic, social or emotional problems, and early identification will get them
involved in one of the service channels that might assist them.

Senator Cork asked if the time limitation factor involved the public service
activities, and Dr. Dempsey responded that it did not; most involves practice,
strength training, and related areas.

Dr. Cox thanked both Dr. Dempsey and Dr. Kloepping, and Senate members applauded
enthusiastically.

APPROVAL OF CURRICULAR MATERIAL: Approval of Curriculum Bulletin, vol. 13, No.
16, Section I, was moved (motion 90/91-38), seconded and unanimously approved
on a voice vote. Approval of Section IV was moved (motion 90/91-39), seconded
and unanimously approved on a voice vote.

CONTINUED DISCUSSION ON ASUA PROPOSAL FOR RECOGNIZING EXCELLENT TEACHING: Dr.
Cox said she had received a letter from Senator Aleamoni, unable to be present
today, due to a long-standing commitment, and he asked her to convey its message
to the Senate. She said when he returns he would be glad to discuss the content:

"It has come to my attention that the University Teaching Center is trying to
promote the use of a student rating questionnaire that primarily consists of a
standard core of five general items along with the addition of items selected
from a catalog. Unfortunately, such a questionnaire will not provide the faculty
with meaningful data upon which to base judgments about their instructional
effectiveness. 1In fact, such a questionnaire does not even satisfy the 1983
Board of Regents policy, the 1983 Faculty Senate recommendations, nor the 1989
Deans’ Council recommendations of including student ratings that are ‘systemat-
ically undertaken and anchored in a comparative data base.’ Additionally, this
would not even provide the necessary data called for in the ASUA proposal before
this Senate today.

"Apparently the University Teaching Center seems to be unaware of the extensive
research on the problem of single general items’ invalidity when compared to
multiple item subscales. They also seem to be unaware that responses to any
attitudinal item cannot be interpreted in an absolute fashion and, therefore,
requires the use of appropriate normative data bases for comparisons. For
references to some of the research in this area, please refer to the attached
article entitled ’‘Student Rating Myths vs. Research Facts.’'"

Dr. Cox said Senator Aleamoni had attached a copy of the article, and wished to
make it available to Senators in their next package.

Senator Avery said Dr. Garcia, Director of the University Teaching Center (UTC),
was present today to respond to questions. He said that since discussion on this



1990/91-95

ASUA proposal had been postponed several times, he would briefly take Senators
through the proposal, outlining some of the concerns, and then ask for Senate
comments and assistance in implementing it. Senator Avery spoke of ASUA's first
course and instructor evaluation booklet, implemented in 1966 and discontinued
in 1983. Thirty percent of instructors had been responding, but with the intro-
duction of the Arizona Daily Wildcat’s Top Ten Worst Teaching List, faculty were
apparently discouraged from participating, and evaluation was transformed into
a negative rather than a positive aspect of teaching.

Senator Avery stated that the current proposal, with a revised format and a
different theoretical approach, could again provide valuable information to
students without producing a negative effect. He reviewed the proposal’s goals:

A comprehensive instructional evaluation system which allows students to
participate in the process of recognizing and recommending the reward of good
teaching.

A uniform campus-wide student evaluation system with common core questions
for all faculty and the establishment of central funding.

The establishment of a campus instructional effectiveness support committee
to deal with concerns inherent in the evaluation process.

The evaluation of every course taught by UA faculty members.

Public access to top scores in each department on campus.

The reward of top teachers with sponsored grants and university-wide recog-
nition in conjunction with publication of all teaching awards on campus.

Senator Avery said ASUA is concerned with establishment of a campus-wide evalua-
tion system with five or six basic common-core questions; UTC could develop this
system, meeting the Board of Regents criteria, to include discussion with the
Provost’s office and faculty. 1In addition, a series of 250 questions could be
chosen. The support committee would play an important role; Senator Avery said
students have nowhere to take complaints if an instructor interferes with the
confidentiality of the evaluations. Complaints are now received at UTC, but no
structure has been implemented to handle them. He suggested the composition of
that committee might include one department head and a few faculty and students,
who would review complaints and submit recommendations to the Provost and the
appropriate dean/department head. Senator Avery said he believes it is crucial
that every course taught by an instructor at this university be evaluated. "We
are not asking that every score be released, but perhaps the top departmental
scores could be released, perhaps the upper ten or fifty percent, and individuals
could permit their own scores to be released.” With a two-thirds vote of the
faculty within a given department, authorization could be granted to release
all scores of that department. Senator Avery added that faculty should be re-
warded with sponsored grants and university-wide recognition, and all teaching
awards should be published and records maintained at one central location, the
University Teaching Center.

The cost to evaluate every course on campus would be approximately $40,000, and
Senator Avery said he had spoken with Provost Cole about allocating 1/3 the cost
to the Provost’s Office, 1/3 to UTC, and 1/3 to departments. Currently, some
individual faculty pay for the cost of getting their courses evaluated.

Senator Mautner asked if other universities have programs similar to ASUA’s
proposal. Senator Avery said that Harvard has an outstanding program in place,
as well as Purdue, and he believed Michigan does too. Dr. Garcia reported UTC's
faculty advisory committee reviewed various systems across the country and found
most systems similar to ASUA’s proposal: Purdue’s has been in place seventeen



1990/91-96

years, and UCLA has recently adopted the program. He said its flexibility allows
a university to tailor the questionnaire to the needs of the faculty.

In response to a question from Senator Enos, Senator Avery said the proposed
format would replace the evaluation form currently in use, it will include both
curriculum and instruction, and each course being taught would be evaluated,
whether the instructor was a professor or a graduate teaching assistant. Dr.
Garcia said that a demographic information section is being designed for the top
of the form that will provide some information about the individual filling out
the form: is this a required class, grade level, GPA.

Dr. Holly Smith said she would like to know more about how the top score in the
department is defined: if there is a department in which only one faculty member
chooses to release the scores, does that person ipso facto become the top score
in the department or is there some background? She said small graduate seminars
produce high scores, but would not be the courses of interest to undergraduates.
Senator Avery responded that it is proposed the top scores in each department
be released by the department as a whole. Dr. Smith wondered if all that would
be released would be the graduate seminar scores.

Dr. Cox said she recognized several Senators wanted the opportunity to address
this topic, but because of the hour, she had to now entertain a motion for
adjournment or a motion to extend the meeting.

The call for adjournment was made, and the meeting adjourned at 5:07 p.m.

Senator Zukoski asked that discussion on ASUA’'s proposal be placed in a more
appropriate place on the next agenda so there will be adequate time to discuss
it and come to a satisfactory conclusion. Senator Spera asked that equally high
priority be placed on Guidelines for Periodic Review of Deans, Directors and
Department Heads, for which time limitations had precluded discussion today.
Dr. Cox said she hoped both items hopefully will be placed higher on the agenda
for the next meeting.

David Butler, Acting Secretary of the Senate

MOTIONS APPROVED AT MARCH 4, 1991 MEETING:
90/91-38 Approval of Curriculum Bulletin, Vol. 13, No. 16, Section I.
90/91-39 Approval of Curriculum Bulletin, Vol. 13, No. 16, Section IV.

ATTACHMENTS TO THESE MINUTES:
February 20 memorandum from Senators Witte and Zukoski, circulated to the College
of Medicine faculty
NOTE: Due to the length of the Senate agenda, regular monthly reports were not
given, but the Instruction and Curriculum Policy Committee Report is here
appended for your information because of its importance.






